
CITY OF COTTAGE GROVE
CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA SESSION MINUTES
May 10,2024

Mayor Solesbee called the meeting to order at 8:32 am.

Council in attendance virtually and in person: Mayor Solesbee, Councilors Dreher, Ervin, Fleck,
Merryday, Savage and Stinnett. .'

Staff present virtually and in person: City Manager Mik~..SilUerwein, City Recorder Mindy
Roberts, Public Works and Development Director.Faxe{S~w~~I'oliceChief Cory Chase,
Human Resources Manager Mandy Biehler and Clty,Planner Ene Mpngan.

Mayor Solesbee shared that the upcoming meeting will begin with a Peace Officers Memorial
Day Proclamation.

>. , ,
Councilor Merryday joined the meeting virtually at 8;}'!ani

(a)
'%.

Public Hearing De'~iarfrig,Surplus Re~1 Propertv79030 Thornton Lane (Map & Tax Lot
20-03-22-40-oMdll) ." " ," }l'

'""

City Planner Eric MongaI,l explain~d.that this property is located at the end of Thornton Lane and
was formerly'part.ofthe Midd!efiel,d·0'9IfG,Qurse'pp,>perty. He shared that flyers were sent out
to approxirnl:!tely'40§ealtors hj'gli1ighting'tha~ tlJe,prcmerty was available for sale and said it was
advert~ed.ih the local'nl:v,:sl?apenui<,l,on the City.'ll~website. He said originally three bids were
receive(t~d the highest bidder was'E!harkey Properties, LLC. He added that the public hearing
would solicis'P\ibliC input ort{he offer: .

/
City Planner confiJrned that proce~ds of the sale would go into the Wastewater Fund.

There were no further ql;1estions.

(b) Public Hearing Declilting Surplus Real Property (Map & Tax Lot 20-03-32-43- 01400)

City Planner Eric Mongan explained that Ernie Olson has offered to purchase 6.45 acres in the
Industrial Park. He said the public hearing would solicit public input on the transaction. He
added that the property was not listed or publicized as being for sale, Mr. Olson inquired in
person and submitted a written offer.

Councilor Fleck asked for an explanation regarding the payment for the purchase of the property.

I - Council Agenda Session 5/1 0/2024



,

City Planner Eric Mongan explained that if the sale is approved, the payment schedule would be
amended in the purchase and sale agreement. He said Mr. Olson had recently sold some
properties and that he would make an initial payment of $175,000 and final payment would be
made with the impending sale of additional properties.

(c) Public Hearing for Ordinance Amending the Cottage Grove Municipal Code Regarding
Various Sections of Title 14

City Planner Eric Mongan explained that the public hearing would be to hear input on various
changes throughout Title 14 of the Municipal Code. He said sqII)e, on the changes are to clean up
the code language and references in the tables and he continued'~y highlighting some of the
more significantchanges.'

Council and staff discussed changes made to the all'?'Yable fence1iei,ght, front yard setback
requirements, wireless communication standards;frei;1oval of ash th~~.s,.from the street tree list,
language added for middle housing land divi~i6no\~t;ndards, state defirii!lpns for Cottage Clusters
and expedited land division and platting. '~ ".

\,.

(d) Public Hearing for Ordinance.Amending the'GDttage.Grove Comprehensive Plan Land
Use Diagram Map & Title 14]iandUse Distridt.Map'for 2352 &2416 Easf Whiteaker
Avenue (Map 20-03-27-32 TmcLufs·.b2300 & OOS'Ol)(MCPA 1-22)

~ ~ '.
'.«.), ", " ~ - ~~ :.:- r

City Planner Eric Mongan elSplained that(ClaytonPl!yne\1ad appJied for a Comprehensive Plan
amendment with mapching~;Jb~~9nvert2\~';~cres,o(~" MJ,11ti.:pamily Residential land to
Industrial. He said tpe'p-Ianning,C,C>!p.missiohheld:?cpublic'he,ariyg on March 20, 2024 and did
not recommend approy<i)0'lnd addep.that Staffi~ no(recommending adoption.

'< . ,

"'I., . , ".
Councilor ¥erWda)'~statedi~atc8nyeriiirgresideiJ.t~il:Uo mini-storage units does not meet the
City's hotlsil).ggoals. ~ , . . ~" ~ '" '

.,' ""'.," '~-<:i »--.c'

~ ....'" ' j
',? • " '(, ,.

Councilbt;Fleck clarified thrtoin ordeJfw Council to approve, they would have to establish
reasoning'thililthe findings were,met.· "

'"",,, , " , c,
, _ ''u,Y

Councilor Stinnett asked why s6mething comes to Council if it is not recommended by the
" ')- e. '

Planning Commissio,iJ.. ;'
-'-<.

City Planner explained th'lt a:'~nal decision must be reached by Council in order to establish the
applicant's right to appea( '-"

Resolutions and Ordinances

(a) Resolution Declaring Surplus Real Property and Authorization for Sale to Sharkey
Properties, LLC

City Planner Eric Mongan explained that after the Public Hearing, Council could consider
adopting the resolution.

2 - Council Agenda Session 5/1 0/2024



(d)

(b) Resolution Declaring Surplus Real Property and Authorization for Sale to Ernest Olson
Jr.

City Planner Eric Mongan explained that after the Public Hearing, Council could consider
adopting the resolution.

(c) First Vote for Ordinance Amending the Cottage Grove Municipal Code Regarding
Various Sections of Title 14.

City Planner Eric Mongan shared that the ordinance has been 'lyailable for more than one week
and it could be adopted in one meeting, / '

First Vote for Ordinance Amending the Cottage<Grove @omprehensive Plan Land Use
Diagram Map & Title 14 Land Use District M~p;f6r 235~'&.2416 East Whiteaker
Avenue (Map 20-03-27-32 TLs 02300 &0080'1) (MCPA fQ2t

-' 'j," . i- '

I. ~~

City Planner Eric Mongan shared that the ordilla.p.c,e has been available form.ore than one week
and it could be adopted in one meeting. He said'tn})JCder foral:wncil to ad6PJ'the ordinance, they

t;. ,.~- '~'- " .",-
would have to draft findings to sUPP9rt the assertion" J;Ie aqde,el'that Staff is nof'recommending
adoption. •

Buslhess'ftmn the City Council
.... "~ '',:~~. ...,)....

'.
(a) Street Improvement and Funding Update 'C,

, ">'" '{~ • -'1,'

Public Works and Dsv!:!opmenfr;>irector Fay~ S,tew!)tt/provid~d~n update of Staffs efforts
regarding the Ad-Hoc·,Sb:eet Imprb'irement Fundil)g'Committee"s recommendations. He shared

.;. • 'l' '_'

information garnered fr6~'meetings~thLegal'G'ounsel, Pelroy & Associates and several. . - ,""~

County representa~lyes,"" " "'" , "
~. ~'t; ". ,{:} ... ",..,,'

Councilor.Fleck askedwh'at actibns'would be'taken, next.
'-;. ::.. .,~. v " _.".

'':, ,.. "~ ....

Public W6rk~lJ!ld Developmefttpirectori.F'!ye Stewart said that he will consult Legal Counsel to
discuss appropriiite timing for lmy.potentil() 'ballot measure items.

. ,.
}\

Mayor Solesbee exc~.s:ed herseltfr6m the meeting at 9:01am
,# ,

~.(, ','
(b) Concerns from Council/'

Council concerns and committee reports included:

Councilor Fleck reported on the Lane Area Commission on Transportation meeting. He said that
project funding could potentially be available and shared that he was asked to identify one of the
City's top projects. He also reported that Travis Knudsen was selected as Director for the Lane
Regional Air Protection Agency (LRAPA).

3 - Council Agenda Session 5/10/2024



Councilor Merryday shared constituent concerns about using a portion of the North Regional
Park as a potential site for the unhoused. He requested that the City communicate factual
information regarding the process that is being followed to discuss options for the unhoused
population.

Councilor Dreher asked on the behalf of a resident, if goats are allowed as pets in City limits.

City Planner Eric Mongan responded that he will look into it and get back to her.

Councilor Savage shared experiences from attendance of the I;eag~e of Oregon Cities (LaC)
Spring Conference.

Counci!or Ervin reported on the Cottage Gro~e Com~uiii~Y'~~undation mee.ting and shared
discussIOns that were held about how to dlstnbute funds,wlthm thi;>commumty and the lack of
mentoring programs within the community. He.~har~d experiences,{rom attendance of the LaC
Spring Conference and announced the Skate ]3ark(,pursuit is being reen~rgized. He reported on a
meeting involving Cascades West Economic b~v'el.?pment District and'di~~ussions involving
undergrounding of cables and wires. . "

;z.

Councilor Stinnett excused himself'fr~>IIi"t1].e remainder·oHhe'meeting and expressed concern
regarding time of the next Budget Coqrlrtitti1i·m.eeting..·· '.

,~ ~

~, ~.<S'~ "'~~

City Manager said that there ~ill be a di1crtssion anite upcom'ing!'<Bouncil meeting to determine
,c"''W -<;~ ",.;,' .~

the best time to hold the'1l\\;~ling.~d he shared a coupl~'91'Op,tions" )
(, , ,'- ''I 'l:. }..., \;, ' ,r' < • '}

Councilor Merryday ·S1J,!ife.d an obl!i~tion to attendf.the Chamber of Commerce Business Plan
Challenge event which is s'ch.edul~d.OF the same'!Ji'ght as the Budget Committee meeting.

~. ., ~'} \ ~,

~. .

,r. .Business,fr?In.CihjManager
r ... \., )

'-. "0:':;"

City Mal1jtger Mike Sauer~ein shareg.'!qlraft agenda for the upcoming May 18,2024 Work
Session to'd(scllsS homelessh~ssJssues·~dasked Council for any suggested changes or
additions. ' "' \. \..Y

, < "
" \. . ,

Public Works andD"!velopmenfpirector shared that he had conversations with people who
would be directly impaq,ted.9y(ttt~potential of having an unhoused site on the property near the
Wastewater Treatment phuJt;;J::fe'added that he let them know Council would be having
discussions around possibilitles and no decisions have been made.

Councilor Fleck asked if funding is in the budget for the possible site.

City Manager responded that funding is not included in the budget for the proposed site.

Councilor Ervin verified that the Police Department and Public Works Department would be
represented at the Work Session.

4 - Council Agenda Session 5/1 0/2024



Councilor Ervin requested that information be available regarding recent action and ordinances
that other communities have implemented.

(a) Vacant Property Registration, Clean Up, and Maintenance

City Manager Mike Sauerwein provided documents outlining how the City of Veneta addresses
vacant properties. He added that the topic was brought by Council at a previous meeting and the
information can be used as reference to start the conversation.

(b) Budget Committee Meetings

Councilor Fleck expressed concern that budget documents' ha'd~not been received yet. He said it
does not allow time to go through the budget and the !peeting dates should be moved if budget
documents are not received today.

..<' F
City Manager Mike Sauerwein said he met witH' indIviduals who are working to create a Parks
and Recreation District and he will share more information on Monday night.,

Public Works and Development Director Faye Stewart"shared that the bids for·the Bohemia Park
project came in higher than the budget and available fun~s. H~ said he will be Irteeting with the
low bidder to see ifthere is any way 10 reduce costs.. .

' ..
Council President Greg Ervin adjourned t(le,meeting~t9.;34 anL.,

.( .,

Mindy Roberts; City Recorder

5 - Council Agenda Session 5/10/2024

·Clmdace Solesbee, Mayor


